
UN ITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 8 201/ SEP 29 AN 10: 27 

In the Matter of: ) 
) 

Chcmtica USA, ) 

. '. i. I" 

PENALTY COMPLAINT AND:~6'h~~' 8,Fi/! 
OI'I'ORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

) 
Respondent ) DOCKET NO. : FIFRA-QS-2011-o014 

INTRO DUCTION (JURISDI CTION) 

1. This Complaint and Not ice of Opportunity for Hearing (,'Complaint") is 
autho rized by Congress in sect ion 14(a) afthc Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide 
Act (FIFM), 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a). The rules for this proceeding arc the "Consolidated Rules of 
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance ofCompiiallcc or 
Corrective Action Orders and the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Pcnnits (Rules of 
Practice)," 40 C.F.R. parl22, a copy of which is enclosed. 

2. The undersigned EPA officials have been properly delegated the authority to issue 
this action. 

3. EPA alleges that Respondent Chemtica USA, Inc. has vio lated FIFRA by 
importing a misbranded pesticide and proposes the assessment ofa civil penalty. as more fully 
explained below. FIrM authorizes the assessment of a c ivil penalty for vio lations of the Act. 7 
U.S.C. § 136/(a). 

NOTI CE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEA RING 

4. Rcspondcnt has the right to a public hearing before an administrative law judge 
(AU) to disagree with (I) any fact stated (alleged) by EPA in the complaint, or (2) the 
appropriateness of the proposed penalty. 

5. To disagree with the complaint and assert your right to a hearing, Respondent 
must file a written answer (and one copy) with the Regional Hearing Clerk (1595 Wynkoop 
Street; Denver. Colorado 80202- 1129) within 30 days ofrecciving this complaint. The answer 
must clearly admit. deny or explain the factual allegations of the complaint. the grounds for any 
defcnse, the facts you may dispute. and your spec ific request for a publ ic hearing. Please sec 
section 22.15 of the Rules of Practice for a complete description of what must be in your answer. 
FA ILURE TO FILE AN ANSWER AND REQUEST FOR I-IF.ARI NG WITH IN 30 DAYS 
MA Y WAIVE RESI'ONDENT'S RIG HT TO DISAG REE WITH TIlE ALLEGATIONS 
OR PROPOSED PENALTY, AND RESULT IN A DEFAULT J UDGM ENT AND 
ASSESSMENT OF T HE PENALTY PROPOSED IN THE COM I' LAINT. 



QUICK RESOLUTION 

6. Respondent may resolve this proceeding at any time by paying the specific penalty 
($2,860) proposed in the complaint. Such payment need not contain any response to, or 
admission of~ the allegations in the complaint. Such payment constitutes a waiver of 
Respondent's right to contest the allegations and to appeal the final order. Sec section 22.18 of 
the Rules of Practice for a fu ll explanation of the quick resolution process. This payment shal l be 
made by remining a cashier's or cert ified check for that amount, payable to ''Treasurer, United 
States of America," to: 

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
PO Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS 

7. EPA encourages discussing whether cases can be settled through informal 
settlement conferences. If you want to pursue the possibility of settling this matter, or have any 
other questions, contact Eduardo Quintana at 1-800-227-8917; extension 6924, 303-312-6924, or 
the address below. Please 1I0le lit at calling lit e attorney or requesting a settlemenl conference 
{Ioes NOT delay tlte ,ulllting oftlte 30 day periodfor filing (Ill answer ami reqlles/ing a 
hearillg. 

ALLEGATIONS 

At all times pertinent to the complaint, the following general allegations app ly: 

8. Respondent, Chemtica USA is an Oklahoma limited liability company. 

9. Respondent is located at 29 12 Enterprise Blvd .. Durant, Oklahoma. 

10. Respondent is a "person" withillthe meaning of sec Lion 2(5) ofFIFRA, and 
subject to the requirements of the statute and/or regu lations. 7 U.S.c. § 136(s). 

11. BeetlcBlock-Verbcnone. EPA Reg. No. 73813-2 is a "pesticidc" within the 
meaning of section 2(u) of FIFRA, and subject to the requirements of the statute and/or 
regulations. 7 U.S.C. § 136(u). 

12. On June 2. 2011 Respondent , through its agent Protrans International Inc .. 
imported BeetleBlock-Vcrbcnone, EPA Reg. No. 738 13-2 from Costa Rica. On or about June 6. 
2011, EPA inspector deteml ined that the label on the imported Beetle13loek-Vcrbcnonc included 
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an incorrect EPA establi shment number for Beetlel3lock-Vcrbenone. The incorrect 
establishment number included in the imported BeetlcBlock-Verbenonc's 
label was 85992-0K-I. The correct establishment number for BeetleI31ock-Verbenone is 
73813-CR-1. 

13. Failing to include the correct EPA establishment number in the pest icide label for 
Respondent's BeetleBloek-Verbenone constitutes misbranding within the meaning of section 
2(q) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36(q). 

14. Section 2(gg) orFIFRA defines the term 10 "distribute or se ll" as distribute. sell, 
offer for sale, hold for distribution, hold for shipment, or receive and (having so received) deliver 
or o ITer to deliver. 7 U.S.c. § 136(gg). 

15. FIFRA section 12(a)(I)(E). 7 U.S .c. § I 36j(a)(I)(E), prohibits the sale or 
distribution of any pesticide that is misbranded. 

16. Respondent is a registrant, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor subject 
to the civil penalty provisions of section 14(a)(I) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § I 361(a)(I). 

17. Respondent's importation of'the misbranded pesticide Beet lel3lock-Verbenone 
constitutes an unlawfu l act in violation of section 12(a)( I)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 
J36j(a)( 1 )(E), and therefore subject to a civil penalty pursuant to section 14(a)(I) of FIFRA, 7 
U.S.C. § I 361(a)( I). 

PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY 

18. For a Respondent that meets the definition of section 14(a)(I) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.c. 
§ I 36/(a)(1 ), as is applicable in this proceeding, FIFRA authori7..eS the assessment of a civil 
penalty of up to $7,500 for each offense oflhe Act as adjusted by the Debt Collection 
Improvement Act of 1996. FIFRA requires EPA to considcr the appropriateness of the penalty to 
the size of the business, the effect on the person ' s ability to continue in business, and the gravity 
of the vio lation. EPA has established policies that provide a rational and consistent mcthod for 
applying statutory factors to the circumstances of specific cases. A narrative description of the 
reasoning behind the pcnalty proposed in thi s case is attached to this complaint, along with 
copies of the EPA policies. For the FIFRA violation aJleged in thi s complaint, EPA proposes a 
penalty of$2,860. The penalty narrative and calculation can be found in complainant's Exhibit 
Number I. 

19. The ALJ is nOI bound by EPA's penalty policy or the penalty proposed by 
Complainant, and may assess a penalty above the proposed amount, up to the maximum amount 
authorized in the statute. In this case, thc maximum would be $7,500. 
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To discuss settlement or ask any questions you may have about this process, plcase 
contact Eduardo Quintana, Enforcement Attorney, at 1-800-227-8917; ext. 6924 , or at the 
address below. 

Date =] (:?b\ H 

Date: ~i_/~-----;.q---,~,--",--,-,-,---( 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 8. otnce of" Enforcement, Compliance and 
Environmental Justice, Complainant 
1595 Wynkoop Street (ENF-L) 
Denver, CO 80202-1129 

By: 

By: 

By: 

Sandra A. Stavnes, Director 
Technical Enforcement Program 

Supervisory Enforcement Attorney 
Legal Enforcement Program 

Eduard I Quintana, Enforcement Attorney 
Legal Enforcement Program 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certi fies that the original and one copy orthe COM PLAINT, 
AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING with Exhibits were hand-carried to the 
Regional Hearing Clerk, EPA Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop Street; Denver, Colorado 80202-1129, 
and that a true copy of the same was sent via Cert ified Mai l to: 

H. Alan Oehlschlager 
Chcmtica USA, Inc. 
3412 Stafford Dr. 
Nonnan, OK 73072 

Date 
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Penalty Calculation Nar rative 
Chemticll USA 

COWlAINAHTS 
EXHIBIT NO. 1-

I. To ensure a unifonn and consistent enforcement response and application of the statutory 
penalty criteria in the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) developed the December, 2009, Enforcement Response Policy 
for the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Roden ticide Act (2009 Policy). 

2. According to the 2009 Policy, the appropriate enforcement response for the distribution of a 
misbranded pesticide is a civil penalty. Chemtica USA is charged with one count of distributing a 
misbranded pest icide. The pestic ide, BeetleBlock-Verbenone, EPA registration number 738 13-2, made 
formal entry at the Port of Salt Lake City, Utah, on June 2, 2011. The BeetleBiock-Verbenone product 
has EPA establishment number 85992-0 K-001 on its label. The EPA establ ishment number is 738 I 3-
CR·OOI. 

3. FIFRA Section 14(a)(4) requires EPA to "consider the appropriateness of (a civil penalty) to 
the size of the business of the person charged, the effect on the person's ability to continue in business, 
and the gravity of the vio lation." 

4. Following the guidance in the 2009 Policy, EPA calculates a proposed civil penalty by first 
detcnnining the gravity of the offense. The gravity of the offense is identified using Appendix A of the 
2009 Policy. Appendix A identifies a violation ofFIFRA section 12(a)(2)(E) [distribution ofa 
misbranded pesticide] as gravity level 2. 

5. Second, according to the 2009 policy, the size of business is taken into acCOunt. The size of 
business is determined from the company's gross revenues from all revenue sources during the prior 
calendar year. When information concerning the size of business is not readily available, the 2009 
Policy directs the use of Category I size of business. This will remain the base penalty value unless 
Chemtica USA can estab lish that it should be considered in a smaller category. Thus, EPA has 
determined the size of the business category for Chemtica USA as Category I (gross rcvenues over 
$10,000,000). 

6. Third, EPA used the above gravity and size of business components and the Civil Penalty 
Matrix for FIFRA Section 14(a)( 1) vio lat ions on page 19 of the 2009 Policy to detennine the dollar 
amount of the proposed penalty. Violations with level 2 gravity and in Business Category I are assessed 
a penalty of $7, 150 for each count. (The pena lty amounts shown in the 2009 Civil Penalty Matrix have 
been changed by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 with the most recent adjustment to 
$7, 150; effect ive after January 12,2009.) 

7. The 2009 Penalty Policy then directs that the actua l circumstances of the violations be 
considered using grav ity adjustment criteria listed in Appendix B of that document. The penalty 
amounts detennincd from the matrix can be adjusted either upward or downward depending on the 
specifics ofthc case known to EPA at the time of the penalty calculation. 

The following gravity adjustment values were used to evaluate the fIFRA violation: 

(a) Pesticide: a value of 1 is assigned due to the signal word "Caution." 



(b) Harm to human health: a value of 0 is ass igned as negligible harm to human heaJth is 
anticipated. 

(c) Environmental hann: a value of 0 is assigned as negligible hann to the environment is 
anticipated. 

(d) Compliance history: a value of 0 is assigned as there is no history of prior violations of 
FIFRA. 

(e) Culpability: a value of2 is assigned as culpability is unknown or resulted from negligence. 

This result is a total gravity adjustment value of 3 fo r the vio lation associated with the 
distribution of a misbranded pest icide. 

8. Using a Gravity Adjustment Value of3, Table 3 in Appendix C of the 2009 Policy states to 
reduce the matrix value by 60% (-$4,290). 

9. Finally, EPA attempts to take into consideration what effect the calculated penalty would 
have on the ability of Chern tic a USA to pay based on limited infonnat ion avai lable to EPA. 
Adjustments of the proposed penalty can be made at a later date should information warranting such a 
change become available. No adjustments were made at this time. 

10. In sum, EPA arrived at a penalty 01'$2,860 for Chemtica USA's violation of FIFRA section 
l2(a)(2)(E) by considering all of the FIFRA Section 14(a)(4) penalty criteria through the usc of the 2009 
Policy. 



Respondent: 
Docket No.: 
API'EN DIX A 
1. Violation 
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§21.13 

approve or disapprove the State issued 
statement, in accordance wi th tbe re­
quirements of § 21.5. 

(2) The Regional Administrator will 
periodically review State program per­
formance. In tbe event of State pro­
gram deficiencies the Regional Admin­
istrator will notify the State of such 
deficiencies. 

(3) During that pertod that a ny 
State's program 1s classified as defi­
cient, statements issued by a State 
shall also be sent to the Regional Ad­
ministrator for review. The Regional 
Administrator shall notify the Stat e , 
the applicant. and tbe SBA of any de­
termination subsequently made, in ac­
cordance with §21.5, on any such state­
ment. 

(1) If within 60 days after notice of 
such deficiencies has been provided, 
the State has not taken corrective ef­
forts, and if the deficiencies signifi­
cantly affect the conduct of t he pr o­
gram, the Regional Administrator, 
after sufficient notice has been pro­
vided to the Regional Director of SBA, 
shall withdraw the approval of the 
State program. 

(11) Any State whose program is with­
drawn and whose deficiencies have been 
corrected may later rea pply as pro­
vided in §21.12(a). 

(g) Funds appropriated under section 
106 of the Act may be utilized by a 
State agency authorized to receive 
such funds in conducting this program. 

§ 21.13 Effect of certification upon a u-
thori ty to e nforce applicable stand­
ards. 

The certification by EPA or a'state 
for SBA Loan purposes in no way con­
stitutes a determination by EP A or the 
State that the facUi ties certified (a) 
will be constructed with i n the tim e 
specified by an applicable standard or 
(b)- will be constr ucted and installed in 
accordance with the plans and speci­
fications submitted in the application , 
will be operated and maintained pr op­
erly I or will be applied to process 
wastes which are the same as described 
in the application. The certifioation in 
no way constitutes a waive r by EPA or 
a State of its authority to take appr o­
priate enforcement action against the 
owner or operator of such facilities for 
violations of an applicable standard. 

!::~~.~7~itiOn) 
PART 22-CONSOLIDATED RULES 

OF PRACTICE GOVERNING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT OF 
CIVIL PENALTIES AND THE REV­
OCATION/ TERMINATION OR SUS­
PENSION OF PERMITS 

Subpart A-General 

Sec. 
22.1 Scope of this part. 
22.2 Use of nwnber and gender. 
22.3 DefinItIons. 
22.4 Powers and duties of the EnvIron­

mental Appeals Board, Regional JudIcial 
Officer ",nd Presiding Officer; dlsqualt­
fica.tion, withdra.wal, a.nd reassIgnment. 

22.5 F111ng, service, and form of all med 
documents; business confidentiality 
claims. 

22.6 F1l1ng and service of rulings, orders and 
decisions. 

22.7 Comput.a.tion a.nd extension of time. 
22.8 Ex parte discussion of proceeding. 
22.9 Examination of documents fil ed . 

Subpart S-Parties and Appearances 

22.10 Appearances. 
22 .11 In terven tion and non-party bri efs. 
22.12 Consol1dation and severance. 

Subpart C-Preheoring Procedures 

22.13 Commencement of a proceeding. 
22.14 Complaint. 
22.15 Answer to the complaint. 
22.16 Motions. 
22.17 Default . 
22. 18 Quick resolution; settlement; alter­

native dispute resolution. 
22.19 Prehearing information exchange; pre· 

hearing conference; other discovery. 
22.20 Accelerated decision; decision to dis­

miss. 

Subpart D-Hearing Procedures 

22.21 Assignmen t of P residing Officer ; 
scheduling the hearing. 

22.22 Evidence. 
22.23 Objections and offers of proof. 
22.24 Burden of presentation; burden of per· 

suasion; pr eponderance of the evidence 
standard. 

22.25 Ftltng t.he transcript.. 
22.26 Proposed findings, conclUsions, and 

order. 

Subpart E-lnitial Decision and Motion to 
Reopen 0 Hearing 

22.27 Initial decision. 
22.28 Motion to reopen a hea.rlni. 
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